
           

* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE CITY OF CORINTH

Thursday, September 24, 2020, 5:45 P.M.
CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Council Members or employees may
attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be

accessed at www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession.
The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the

address posted above as the location of the meeting.
The City of Corinth is following the Center for Disease Control Guidelines for public meetings.

  

           
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

 
1. Consider and act on minutes from August 13, 2020, workshop session.

 
2. Consider and act on minutes from the August 13, 2020, regular session.

 
3. Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, workshop session.

 
4. Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, regular session.

 

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may
be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you
desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City

                                                    1

http://www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession


of Corinth.

 

BUSINESS AGENDA

 
1. Consider and act on an Ordinance adopting the 2020-2021 Annual Budget and appropriating resources

for the budget year beginning October 1, 2020.
 
2. Consider and act on an Ordinance levying and adopting the tax rate for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year.
 
3. Consider and act on an Ordinance approving the 2020 Tax Rolls and accepting the anticipated collection

rate of 100 percent for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021.
 
4. Consider vote to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the city’s annual budget for FY2020-2021.
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

 

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation;
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

a. Update on internal control review.
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road
within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (F)

b.  Being 10.49 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth,
Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City Investments, LLC,
by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of Denton County, Texas (D)
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

                                                    2



a. Project Agora

b. Project Daylight
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.
 
RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.
 
ADJOURN
 

Posted this 19th day of September 2020, at 5:30 P.M., on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

                                                    3

lwylie
Text Box
Lana Wylie



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: August 13, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from August 13, 2020, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from August 13, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 13, 2020, workshop session minutes. 

Attachments
08/13/2020 Workshop Session Minutes 

                                                    4



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this the 13th day of August 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m.  
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

1. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annua l 
Program of Services and Capital Improvement Program. 

 
City Manager Hart outlined the meeting agenda and items for discussion to include the tax rate analysis, the general 
department overview, the sales tax funds, the CIP, debt capacity, and the budget calendar.  The city is currently at 
approximately 70% of the certified tax roll, with 30% unknown. The City Council will vote on the rate in the Regular 
Session Meeting. He presented the overview for City Administration. Human Resources Director, Guadalupe Ruiz, 
gave an overview of the Human Resources budget. Police Chief Garner and Fire Chief Ross provided an overview of 
their budgets. Cody Collier, Public Works Director, Planning & Development Director Helen-Eve Beadle, and Lee 
Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance Director, presented their departmental budgets. 
 
Mr. Hart presented the General Fund Financial Forecast and the Capital Improvement Program. Corinth Economic 
Development Director Jason Alexander presented the Economic Development Departmental Budget.  

                                                    5



 
 

 

                                                    6



 
 

 
 
Mr. Hart stated the city is currently 1.84 to 1.98 % below the average for salaries, which is the justification for the 
recommended 2%. When other cities award raises in October, Corinth will have another pay gap. The effective date 
will be January 1, unless the Fire District Sales Tax does not pass. Council Member Garber inquired about Public 
Safety’s step raises and how this alters their efforts to keep the pay in line with other cities. Ms. Ruiz said the cities 
Corinth is comparable with are Bedford, Highland Village, Little Elm, Wylie, and The Colony. She stated the 
compensation gap is greater, by double digits, if compared to Denton and Lewisville. Ms. Bunselmeyer stated a 2% 
increase in January is $214,000; a full 12 months at 1% is $142,000. A 3% increase would mean $427,500.00, city-
wide. Mr. Hart confirmed Mr. Garber’s comment about being behind the curve. He is not sure how long COVID will 
continue, and the recommendation was to be conservative. He explained the tax rate, and if you go above the voter 
approval rate, residents could file a petition to call an election, and anything above the de minimis rate requires an 
election. Mayor Pro Tem Burke asked about the difference; Ms. Bunselmeyer affirmed one cent is $243,000. Mr. 
Burke asked about SB2 and Public Safety. Mr. Hart confirmed what was approved in this budget year cannot be less 
than what was included in the existing budget. Mr. Garber would like for the city to continue with the step 
performance by next year. Ms. Bunselmeyer stated the progress made over the past several years. She and Ms. Ruiz 
agreed they would prefer the 3% plus cost adjustment, but the revenues do not support the raise. Council Member 
Pickens asked if people leave due to salaries offered. Ms. Ruiz confirmed, yes.  
 
Council Member Johnson asked about salary compression. He suggested the council commit to possibly work on 
both the merit and step program at the six-month point and then commit to the next year’s budget to correct it before 
it becomes a more significant problem.  
 
 
 

                                                    7



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                    8



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                    9



 
 

 
 

                                                    10



 
 

Council Member Johnson asked if the other three Lake Cities have been approached about forming their own fire 
district to offset their expenses. Mr. Hart said they have no interest.  
 

 

                                                    11



 
 

Mr. Johnson inquired about the Utility Capital Replacement Fund. Ms. Bunselmeyer said the funds are for utility capital 
replacement, such as a backhoe or sewer camera.  
 

 

                                                    12



 
 

Mr. Burke asked for an explanation of the CIP and the $531 million. Mr. Hart explained it was related to the tax 
increment. It is all of the infrastructure that was identified. The funds are without county funds and from the period of 
2026-2031. 
 

 

 
 

                                                    13



 
 

 
 

 
 

Ms. Bunselmeyer overviewed the financial forecast and issuing bonds. Mr. Burke inquired about making a 

purchase as soon as possible due to the low rates. Ms. Bunselmeyer stated there would be a possibility of an 
interest payment. Ms. Pickens asked about refinancing debt. Ms. Bunselmeyer said you could only 

refinance them when a call date occurs on the existing securities. The next call date is not until 2026. The 
city refinanced within the last year few years, and we lowered the debt impact. And so now we have to wait 
five years before we can do another one. The city can look into a bond issuance now versus in the spring. 

She said issuing debt is traditionally done after the first quarter since the final audit number is completed in  
January. 

                                                    14



 
 

 
 
Mr. Hart suggested to set the proposed tax rate at $.57738 and stated the council would vote in the Regular Session 
meeting tonight. Ms. Bunselmeyer confirmed if the council wants to issue debt in September, it will increase the debt 
rate, which will be above the $.57738, and it would almost require the de minimis rate because of the unknown of the 
debt impact. Council Member Garber asked if the council approves the de minimis rate, could they approve a lower 
rate before the budget and tax rates are confirmed? Ms. Bunselmeyer confirmed.  
 

 
 

                                                    15



 
 

 
 

 

2. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed 
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.  

 

There was no discussion on regular session agenda items. 

 
 

There was no closed session following the workshop session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 

litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
a. Red River Bancorp Demand (B) 

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with 

a third person. 
 

a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 

Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton 

County, Texas (F) 

 

b. 3.792 acres, Tract 13H, out of the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, within the City of Corinth, 

Denton County, Texas (P) 

 
c. Being 5.379 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City 

Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of 

Denton County, Texas (D) 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 

                                                    16



 
 

discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an 
officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 

stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to 
a business prospect. 

 
a. Project Agora 
 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 7:32 p.m. 

 

AYES: 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       

Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                                    17



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: August 13, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 13, 2020, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the August, 13, 2020, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the minutes.
 
 

Attachments
08/13/2020 Regular Session Minutes 

                                                    18



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this the 13th day of August 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
 
Others Present: 

Ryan Burk, Slate Communications 
Liz Cassi, Slate Communications 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:40 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 
motion. Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

1. Consider and act on a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with Denton 
County for the General and Special Elections on November 3,2020. 

 
 

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve the Consent Agenda and seconded by Council 
Member Pickens, 
 

                                                    19



 
 

AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments made. 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
2. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas adopting a 

proposed FY21 municipal tax rate that will not exceed the voter-approval tax rate or the de 
minimis tax rate; calling a public hearing to be held on September 17, 2020 at Corinth City Hall 
at 7:00 p.m.; requiring publication of a Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase in accordance 
with state law; providing for the incorporation of premises; and providing an effective date. 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager, turned it back to Mayor Heidemann for a vote due to the robust discussion in the 
City Council Work Session Meeting held before this meeting. 
 
MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve adopting a proposed municipal tax rate not to 
exceed the de minimis tax rate and that the attached resolution be amended to reflect that the publication 
rate will be the de minimis tax rate of $.58446 cents. Council Member Garber seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Burke would like to make sure the public is aware that the reason the council is considering the de 
minimis rate is to allow the staff to evaluate whether or not the acceleration of the schedule for borrowing 
funds for the TOD and other capital improvement projects would result in significant long term savings to 
the city, given that current interest rates are 2% and might increase after the November elections or due to 
other circumstances and that they have historically been around 4%. We think we ought to take this 
opportunity to see if we can save approximately half of the interest costs that we would historically incur 
in this kind of project. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

3. Consider and act on the acceptance of BlueCross BlueShield of Texas' proposal for City’s 
employee medical insurance benefits for FY 2020-2021, and authorization for the City 
Manager to execute any necessary documents. 

 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve as presented. Council Member Garber seconded 
the motion.  
 

                                                    20



 
 

AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. Consider and act on the acceptance of Cigna proposal for City’s employee dental insurance 

benefits for FY 2020-2021, and authorization for the City Manager to execute any necessary 
documents. 

 
MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve as presented. Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded 
the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

5. Consider and act on a logo and tagline for Agora, the brand that will be used to market 
and promote infill and redevelopment opportunities within Corinth's emerging downtown 

district and surrounding neighborhoods. 

Ryan Burk with Slate Communications shared a presentation with the City Council for Agora, Corinth’s 
downtown district.  

 

                                                    21



 
 

 

                                                    22



 
  

                                                    23



 
  

                                                    24



 
  

                                                    25



 
  

                                                    26



 
  

                                                    27



 
 

Mr. Burk said the CEDC selected option two as their preferred option and option one was their second 
option. The ambassador group chose the first option. Realty Capital preferred option two and Wolverine 
Interest preferred the first option.  

Mr. Garber asked if the developers had a suggestion regarding district versus at Corinth. Liz Cassi said 
two out of nine selected District. Mr. Garber asked Slate for their opinion, they selected option two. 

 

 

 

 

                                                    28



 
 

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve as presented. Council member Pickens seconded 
the motion.  

AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mr. Burke thanked the staff for the presentation of the budget so far this year, and in particular, the 
department summary pages were excellent. I have in my memory, flipping back two pages to try to find out 
how many full time employees and what the goals were and how the allocation of the funds was as between 
wages and benefits and that being kind of a cumbersome process and though I just can't imagine a better 
summary of them than these for the departments and you didn't get many questions. I think because the 
information is so readily available. It's clear that you can look to see if it lines up with a strategic plan. And 
it's all right there. And I really appreciate it. Thank you did a great job on that presentation. 
 
Ms. Pickens and Mayor Heidemann agreed with Mr. Burke. 
 

There was no closed session before or after the regular session meeting. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Red River Bancorp Demand (B) 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along 

Dobbs Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, 

Denton County, Texas (F) 

 
b. 3.792 acres, Tract 13H, out of the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, within the City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas (P) 

 
c. Being 5.379 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor 

City Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed 

Records of Denton County, Texas (D) 
 

                                                    29



 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or 
employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body 
is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 
incentive to a business prospect. 

 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the 
City Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 
 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 8:09 p.m. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                                    30



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: August 20, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the August 20, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the minutes.
 

Attachments
08/20/2020 Workshop Session Minutes 

                                                    31



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this the 20th day of August 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshall 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:46 p.m. and convened into Closed Session from 5:47 p.m. until 
6:19 p.m. The Workshop Session reconvened at 6:21 p.m. 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Program of 

Services and Capital Improvement Program. 
 

Cody Collier, Public Works Director, George Marshall, City Engineer, and Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, 
Administration, Communications & Marketing Director, presented the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Program of 
Service. Bob Hart, City Manager, presented the Capital Improvement Program to the City Council.  
 

                                                    32



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    34



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    35



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    36



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    37



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
City Manager Hart explained to City Council the bond issuance schedule. The $9.7 million debt to be issued in 
December would benefit the city, based on the interest rate.  Mayor Pro Tem Burke inquired about the savings on 
accelerated debt. Mrs. Bunselmeyer confirmed approximately $1 million interest savings. 

                                                    38



 
 

  
Mrs. Bunselmeyer presented the bond issuance impact on the City Council. Council Member Garber asked what the 
impact on the total tax rate. Mrs. Bunselmeyer stated this is an estimate currently due to the delay in the final tax roll 
calculations. When they calculated the debt issuance assumptions because the debt is issued early in the fiscal year, 
she informed City Council that an interest payment would be made in 2021. When the rates are published, it also 
changes the voter approval rate, and the de minimis rate that will be published. The voter approval rate is $.59014, 
and the de minimis rate is $.59547. 

 

 
 

 

                                                    39



 
 

 
 

 
  

 
2. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items 

as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.  
 

There was no discussion on regular session agenda items. 

Closed Session convened at 5:47 P.M. The Corinth Economic Development Corporation members were 

invited to the meeting. There was no action taken from the CEDC or the City Council.  

 
CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 
a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road 

within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (F) 

  
b. 3.792 acres, Tract 13H, out of the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, within the City of Corinth, Denton 

County, Texas (P) 

 

c. Being 5.379 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 

County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City Investments, LLC, by the 

deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of Denton County, Texas (D) 

 

d. 1.548 acres, Tract 10 (PT), Old DCAD TR 2B, 2D, out of the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, within the 
City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (P2) 

 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.  

                                                    40



 
 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the 
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Closed Session recessed at 6:19 P.M. and reconvened into work session at 6:20 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the work session at 6:53 p.m. 

 

AYES: 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 
Approved by Council on the     day of       2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                                    41



   
    CONSENT ITEM    4.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: August 20, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the August 20, 2020, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the minutes.

Attachments
08/20/2020 Regular Sessions Minutes 

                                                    42



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this the 20th day of August 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshall 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:53 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber and led the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 
PRESENTATION: 

1. Laura Joy, SPAN Mobility Manager, will present a report on the activity for SPAN covering the 
past year.  

Laura Joy and Diane Beck presented the year in review to the City Council. 

                                                    43



 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                    44



 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                    45



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                    46



 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 
motion. Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

2. Consider and act on the fiscal year 2020-2021 Proposed Budget for the City of Corinth Crime 
Control and Prevention District.  
 

Item 2 was removed from the consent agenda and to be considered in a future meeting. 

 
3. Consider and act on a contract for service between the Corinth Economic Development 

Corporation (the "CEDC") and Brittain & Crawford, LLC for surveying, including legal 
descriptions and drawing exhibits, certain real property located at 2003 Corinth Parkway (the 
former Corinth Police Station) for an amount not to exceed $3,000.00. 
 

4. Consider awarding a contract with HQS Construction for concrete street repairs.  
 

5. Consider award of bid to CTX Plumbing to replace all water fixtures in the Community Park to 
touch less, utilizing funds from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act. 
 

6. Consider authorizing the city manager to sign a contract for transportation services for the new 
fiscal year through SPAN. 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve the Consent Agenda Items 3 – 6; seconded by 
Council Member Garber 
 
AYES:  Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 

                                                    47



 
 

and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments made. 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA: 
 

7. Consider the adoption of ordinance 20-08-20-06 to amend provisions of the City of Corinth 
Personnel Policy Manual section 3 (Equal employment), Section 4 (personal appearance), Section 
6 (residency requirement), Section 8 (code of ethics - truthfulness and clean language), Section 9 
(on-call and call-back pay), Section 12 (abuse of sick leave definition), Section 15 (driver’s 
license check), and Section 17 (police standard operating procedures). 

 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director presented the personnel policy amendments to the City 
Council. 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    48



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    49



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    50



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    51



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                    52



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve as presented. Council Member Pickens seconded 
the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

8. Consider acceptance of the resignation of Council Member Lowell Johnson, Place 3. 
 
Council Member Johnson encouraged the council to keep up the good work. He hopes to see the council 
work toward mobility.  
 
The Council, Mayor, and City Manager thanked Council Member Johnson for his leadership, guidance 
and for 22 years of service. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 

                                                    53



 
 

and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke suggested expanding the Ambassador Program to help promote pilot projects. 
 
Council Member Johnson requested a report on fencing options along collectors and other arteries where 
there is wrought iron or tubular steel; other choices for a suitable replacement. 
 
Council Member Henderson thanked everyone for their thoughts and prayers. 
 
City Manager Hart inquired about City Council’s interest in the virtual TML Conference in October and 
the National League of Cities Conference in November 18-20. He also inquired regarding Board 
Appointment interview dates, adding an extra day due to the number of applicants. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Close Session convened at 7:25 P.M.  

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 
a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 

Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas (F) 
  

b. 3.792 acres, Tract 13H, out of the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, within the City of Corinth, 

Denton County, Texas (P) 

 

c. Being 5.379 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City 

Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of 

Denton County, Texas (D) 
 

d. 1.548 acres, Tract 10 (PT), Old DCAD TR 2B, 2D, out of the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract 

1389, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (P2) 

 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or 
employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body 

                                                    54



 
 

is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 
incentive to a business prospect. 

 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the 
City Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Closed Session recessed at 7:30 P.M. and reconvened back into Regular Session at 7:30 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve the contracts entered into by the city manager for 
the Pinnell Drainage Tract for $41,500 and the Pinnell Jones Tract for $1,010,150.00 and authorize the 
city manager to close the transactions. Council Member Garber seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the Regular meeting at 7:41 p.m. 

 

AYES: All 
 

Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the           day of     2020.  

 
       

Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                                    55



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: Adopt the Annual Budget
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Ordinance adopting the 2020-2021 Annual Budget and appropriating resources for the
budget year beginning October 1, 2020.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
This item is to adopt and appropriate funds for the FY 2020-2021 budget. Prior to this meeting, the City followed
Truth-in-Taxation public notice requirements, held a public hearing on the tax rate and a public hearing on the
proposed budget. Interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to provide feedback on the tax rate and proposed
budget.
 
The annual budget continues to provide the financial resources to support our community need and is developed
based on the Strategic Plan and the following guiding principles:
* Perform all budgetary functions in complete and open transparency
* Reduce tax rate when possible while maintaining service levels
* Be fiscally responsible while meeting city departmental needs
* Maintain reserves in accordance with statutory requirements and financial policies.
* Use fund balance only for one-time expenditures or for temporary budgetary stabilization in an economic
downturn.
 
The total budget includes expenditures of $43,752,078. 

RECOMMENDATION
I move to approve an ordinance adopting the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget and appropriating resources for
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021.

Attachments
Ordinance 

                                                    56



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

 

  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, ADOPTING A 

BUDGET AND THE FIRST YEAR OF THE CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND APPROPRIATING RESOURCES FOR 

THE BUDGET YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, FOR THE CITY OF CORINTH, INCLUDING 

OPERATION OF GENERAL GOVERNMENT, THE WATER / 

WASTEWATER UTILITY FUND, THE STORM WATER UTILITY 

FUND,  THE STREET MAINTENANCE SALES TAX FUND, THE 

DEBT SERVICE FUND, THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION FUND, THE CRIME CONTROL AND 

PREVENTION DISTRICT FUNDS, THE FIRE CONTROL, 

PREVENTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL DISTRICT AND 

VARIOUS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and the City Charter, the budget 
covering proposed expenditures for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021 was filed with the City Secretary; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted budget workshops on the proposed budget on 
August 6, August 13, August 20 and September 3, 2020 and fully considered the proposed budget; 

and 
 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter and the Local 
Government Code, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas published notice of and 
conducted a public hearing on the budget on September 17, 2020; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. 

 

 That the City Council adopts the budget for the City of Corinth, Texas, a copy of which is 

on file in the office of the City Secretary and incorporated herein by reference as if copied verbatim 
and which is hereinafter referred to as the “budget”, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 
and ending September 30, 2021. 

  
SECTION 2. 

 
 That the sum of Twenty Million Eight Hundred Two Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Ten Dollars ($20,261,910) is hereby appropriated out of the General Fund revenues 

for the payment of operating expenses of the City Government, as set forth in the budget. 
 

                                                    57



 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 3. 
 

 That the sum of Three Million Four Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand Three Hundred and 
Sixty-Five Dollars ($3,433,365) is hereby appropriated out of the General Debt Service Fund 

revenues and reserve for the payment of the annual general debt service requirements, as set forth 
in the budget. 
 

SECTION 4. 
 

 That the sum of Fourteen Million Seven Hundred Forty-Five Thousand and Three Hundred 
Thirteen Dollars ($14,745,313) is hereby appropriated out of the Water/Wastewater Utility Fund 
revenues for the payment of operating expenses of the Water/Wastewater Utility Fund, as set forth 

in the budget. 
 

SECTION 5. 

 

 That the sum of Seven Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty-Seven 

Dollars ($747,287) is hereby appropriated out of the Storm Water Utility Fund revenues for the 
payment of operating expenses of the Storm Water Utility Fund, as set forth in the budget. 

 
 

SECTION 6. 

 

 That the sum of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000) is hereby appropriated 

out of the Broadband Utility revenues for the payment of operating expenses of the Broadband 
Utility, as set forth in the budget. 
 

 
SECTION 7. 

 

 That the sum of Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars 
($350,774) is hereby appropriated out of the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund revenues for the 

payment of street maintenance operating expenses, as set forth in the budget. 
 

 
 

SECTION 8. 

 

 That the sum of Two Million Fifty-Three Thousand One Hundred and Ninety Dollars 

($2,053,190) is hereby appropriated out of the Economic Development Corporation revenues for 

                                                    58



the payment of operating expenses of the Economic Development Corporation, as set forth in the 
budget. 

 
SECTION 9. 

 

 That the sum of Three Hundred One Hundred and Ninety-Nine Dollars ($300,199) is 
hereby appropriated out of the Crime Control & Prevention District revenues for the payment of 

operating expenses of the Crime Control & Prevention District, as set forth in the budget. 
 

 
SECTION 10. 

 

 That the sum of Two Hundred Thirty Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-Four Dollars 
($230,244) is hereby appropriated out of the Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical 

District revenues for the payment of operating expenses of the Fire Control, Prevention and 
Emergency Medical District, as set forth in the budget. 
 

 

SECTION 11. 

 

 That the sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) is hereby appropriated out of 
the Roadway Impact Fee Fund revenues for the payment of operating expenses of the Roadway 

Impact Fee Fund, as set forth in the budget. 
 

 

SECTION 12. 

 

 That the sum of Nine Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety-Six 
Dollars ($979,796) is hereby appropriated out of the following Special Revenue Funds for the 

payment of operating expenses, as set forth in the budget. 
 
 Hotel Occupancy Tax    $ 243,006 

 Keep Corinth Beautiful    $     7,500 
 Child Safety Program    $   26,953 

 Police Confiscation – State   $   26,523 
 Police Confiscation – Federal   $   10,609 
 Municipal Court Security   $     9,700 

 Municipal Court Technology   $   10,030  
            Community Park Improvement Fund             $   19,188 

 Tree Mitigation    $   50,000 
 Technology Replacement    $ 129,450 

Fire Department Vehicle Replacement $ 321,845 

 General Fund Vehicle Replacement  $   75,392  
 Utility Meter Replacement    $   49,600 

  
 

                                                    59



SECTION 12. 

 

 That the City Council approves the first year of the Capital Improvement Program Budget, 
as set forth in the budget.   

  
             SECTION 13. 

  

 This Ordinance shall take effect from and after its adoption. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY A VOTE OF AT LEAST TWO-THIRDS OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL ON THE 24th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020. 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

__________________________ 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_____________________________ 

City Attorney 

                                                    60



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: Adopt Tax Rate
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Ordinance levying and adopting the tax rate for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The proposed tax rate of $0.57817 per $100 valuation is used to balance the FY 2020-2021 Budget.  The tax rate is
above the no new revenue tax rate of $0.54522 but is below the Voter-Approval Tax Rate of $.59014 and the De
Minimis Tax Rate of $.59547. As required by Property Tax Code Section 26.05(d), the City held a public
hearing on the proposed tax increase on September 17, 2020.  Additionally, the Notice of Public Hearing on Tax
Increase for the City of Corinth was published in the Denton Record Chronicle on September 9, 2020.

The proposed property tax rate should generate $14,232,442 in property tax revenue to support the general fund and
the debt service fund.  The distribution of the tax rate and property tax revenue is as follows:
  
Fund Tax Rate Tax Revenue
General Fund $0.43923 $10,799,079
Debt Service Fund $0.13894   3,433,363
   Total $0.57817 $14,232,442
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Proposed Motion:
I move to approve an ordinance that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.57817 per
$100 assessed valuation, which is effectively a 6.08% increase in the tax rate.
 

Attachments
Ordinance 

                                                    61



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, LEVYING 

TAXES AND FIXING AND ADOPTING THE TAX RATE ON ALL 

TAXABLE PROPERTY FOR THE YEAR 2020 AT THE RATE OF $0.57817 

PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) ASSESSED VALUE ON ALL 

TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

CITY AS OF JANUARY 1, 2020; THE SAID TAX RATE HAVING A 

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS COMPONENT AND A DEBT 

SERVICE COMPONENT; PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF 

PREMISES; PROVIDING REPEALING, SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY 

CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS 

ORDINANCE. 

 

WHEREAS,  Section 26.05 of the Texas Tax Code requires that the City of Corinth, Texas 
(the “City”), adopt a tax rate for the 2020-2021 fiscal year by September 30, 2020; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 26 of the Texas Tax Code, a public hearing on the 
proposed annual budget for the City of Corinth, Texas, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 

2020 and ending September 30, 2021, has been duly advertised, and hearing held on September 
17, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, in compliance with the State of Texas Truth-in-Taxation laws, has 
advertised the proposed tax rate and conducted a public hearing on the proposed tax rate, and all 

notices and hearings and other applicable steps required by law as a prerequisite to the passage, 
approval, and adoption of this Ordinance have been timely and properly given and held; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 26.05(a) of the Texas Tax Code provides that the tax rate consists of 
two components, one of which will impose the amount of taxes needed to pay debt service, and 

the other of which will impose the amount of taxes needed to fund maintenance and operation 
expenses for the next year, and each of which must be approved separately; and 

 

WHEREAS, the tax rate set forth herein consists of two components, as required, and they 
are approved separately; and  

 
WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the matter, the City Council is of the 

opinion that the tax rate for the year 2020 set, fixed, and adopted herein below in proper.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. Findings Incorporated.  The findings set forth above are incorporated into the 

body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 
 

Section 2. Tax Levied.  That there is hereby levied and ordered to be assessed and collected 
an ad valorem tax rate of $0.57817 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation 

                                                    62



 

Ordinance No. _______________ 

for all taxable property located in the City of Corinth on the 1st day of January 2020, and not 
exempted from taxation by the constitution and laws of the State of Texas to provide for the 

expenses of the City of Corinth for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021. The said tax is made up of components, as set forth in this Ordinance:   

 
a. For the maintenance and support of the General Government (General Fund) for the 

fiscal year 2020-2021, $0.43923 on each $100 valuation of property.  

 
THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND 

OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR'S TAX RATE.   

 
THE TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 1.65 PERCENT AND 

WILL RAISE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A 

$100,000 HOME BY APPROXIMATELY $7.12.  

 
b. For debt services for the fiscal year 2020-2021, $0.13894 on each $100 valuation of 

property.   

 
THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE TAXES FOR DEBT SERVICE WHEN 

COMPARED TO LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE.   
 

THE TAX RATE WILL RAISE TAXES PAID FOR DEBT SERVICE ON A 

$100,000 HOME BY APPROXIMATELY $26.05.  

 

Section 3.  Penalties and Interest.  Provisions relative to penalties, interest and remedies for the 
collection of delinquent taxes, as set out in the Charter and the Code of the City of Corinth, Texas, 
as amended, and the laws of the State of Texas, shall be used in the collection of the taxes levied 

herein. 
 

Section 4.  Savings/Repealing Clause.  All provisions of any ordinance in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed; but such repeal shall not abate any pending prosecution for 
violation of the repealed Ordinance, nor shall the repeal prevent prosecution from being 

commenced for any violation if occurring prior to the repeal of the Ordinance.  Any remaining 
portions of conflicting ordinances shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 5.  Severability.  Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is 

expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force 
and effect. City hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, 

subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its adoption and 
publication as required by law after its passage by at least 60% of the Council by a record vote. 

   

                                                    63



 

Ordinance No. _______________ 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, on 
this 24th day of September, 2020, with the following motion by _________ _________________: 

“I move that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.57817 per $100 
valuation, which is effectively a 6.08 percent increase in the tax rate”; seconded by 

___________________________, the above and foregoing ordinance was passed and approved 
by record vote. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 24th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020. 

 

 

            
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___     
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 
_______________________________________ 
Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

 

                                                    64



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    3.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: Approve Tax Rolls
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Ordinance approving the 2020 Tax Rolls and accepting the anticipated collection rate of 100
percent for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Texas Property Tax Code, Section 26.09 (e) requires that the City Council approve the tax roll as submitted by
the Assessor.  The Roll is calculated by taking the 2020 Certified Appraisal Roll of $2,471,111,888 and applying
the 2020 adopted tax rate of $.57817 per $100 valuation.  
 
Chapter 26 of the Property Tax Code requires municipalities to adopt an estimated collection rate to comply with
truth-in-taxation laws in adopting their tax rates.  The laws are designed to make taxpayers aware of the tax rate
proposal.
 
The anticipated collection rate used for the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund is 100% for the 2020-2021
fiscal year.  The collection rate includes the current taxes, delinquent taxes, penalties, and interest. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Proposed Motion: I move to approve the Ordinance accepting the 2020 Tax roll and to accept the submission of
the certified collection rate of 100 percent for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30,
2021.
 
 

Attachments
Ordinance 

                                                    65



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, APPROVING THE 2020 

TAX ROLLS AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH HEREBY ORDAINS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby approves the 2020 tax rolls of the City of 
Corinth, Texas, as approved by the Appraisal Review Board of the Denton Central 
Appraisal District, which, with amounts of tax as approved by the governing body, will 

result in a tax levy in the amount of $14,232,442 based on the Certified Appraisal Roll and 
raise more revenue from property taxes than in the previous year.  

 
 SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage 
and approval. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the ______ day of ______________, 2020. 

 
 
 

      ____________________________________ 
      Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 

 ________________________________ 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 

City Attorney 
 

                                                    66



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    4.        

City Council Special Session
Meeting Date: 09/24/2020  
Title: Vote to Ratify Tax Increase
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider vote to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the city’s annual budget for FY2020-2021.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Section 107.003 ( c) of the Texas Local Government Code states that adoption of a budget that will require raising
more revenue from property taxes than in the previous year requires a separate vote of the governing body to ratify
the property tax increase reflected in the budget.  A vote under this section of the code must be separate from the
vote to adopt the budget or a vote to set the tax rate.
 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Proposed Motion:
I move to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the city’s annual budget for FY 2020-2021.
 

                                                    67


	Agenda
	AI 2058 August 13, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_08_13_2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2059 August 13, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_08_13_2020 Regular Session Minutes
	AI 2060 August 20, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_08_20_2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2061 August 20, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_08_20_2020 Regular Sessions Minutes
	AI 2066 Adopt the Annual Budget
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 2065 Adopt Tax Rate
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 2064 Approve Tax Rolls
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 2063 Vote to Ratify Tax Increase

